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The Himtsville Depot is a two-story building with a large attic which 
served as a third floor. Built of red brick, the Building has a stone found­ 
ation and four end-interior chimneys. The projecting eaves of the gabled 
roof are supported by brackets. A line of decorative brick work lies~"una"er 
these eaves. At the third story level at each end are three arched windows 
with arched wooden architraves, and a round light at the top of the gables. 
At either end of the row of windows is a quarter circle window, which was 
used for ventilation. All of these windows and lights have^ been boarded with 
plywood. There is some evidence that shutters were once on all the windows.

There are pilasters at each o£ the four corners. The north and south 
sides have five windows at the second floor level. Each of these windows is 
arched and is decorated with an arched architrave. The sills are of wood. 
The first floor is the same except on the north side which has a central 
double door with five panes in the arched transoms. The north and east sides 
also have a canopy at the first floor level supported by a large triangular 
brackets at regular intervals. This canopy was an 1913 improvement of an 
existing one. There is no record of the appearance of the original canopy.

A report to the President described the original physical appearance as 
being 70 x 58 feet, and having on the first floor, large waiting rooms for 
Ladies and gentlemen* Engineer's and Conductor's rooms, a ticket office and 
baggage rooms. The second floor housed the offices of the Superintendent, 
the Secretary, the Treasurer and the other officers of the road. These 
offices were provided with fireproof vaults. The upper floor was finished 

sleeping rooms for the officers and operatives of the road.

The depot remained unchanged until the Southern Railway System remodeled 
the interior of the first floor in 1912 and made the additions to the canopy. 
VIost of the interior features were removed. Partitions were replaced and 
electric lights were added. Since 1912 there have been no major construction 
changes, and except for the boarding up of windows, the second and third 
floors remain almost as constructed in 1860.

The depot is in excellent structural condition.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Memphis and Charleston Railroad Depot buijj^in 18160..is the oldest 
railway terminal standing in Alabama and one of the last surviving physical 
evidences of the South's most significant antebellum rail systems. During 
the Civil War the Depot was used as a temporary Federal prison.

The Memphis and Charleston Railroad was the most important transporta­ 
tion line in the South, in addition to being the most potent factor in the 
commercial development of Northern Alabama. Originally incorporated under 
the laws of Tennessee on February 2, 1846, the railway embodied one of the 
early dreams of the south--to connect the Mississippi River at Memphis with 
the Atlantic Ocean at Charleston. The merchants and farmers of North Ala­ 
bama had long suffered from the loss of their cargo in the treacherous Mus­ 
cle Shoals of the Tennessee River. Thus when a railroad was planned, the 
citizens of Huntsville were determined to have the line go through their 
city. By 1849 the citizens had voted $50,000 toward the proposed railroad, 
and by 1850 it had been decided that the route would definitely go through 
Huntsville, which would also be the headquarters for the Eastern Division. 
On January 7, 1850, the company was chartered by the legislature of Alabama 
as the Memphis and Charleston Railroad Company.

Work on the railroad was begun in Madison County May 21, 1852, and by 
October 13, 1855 the first train rolled into the temporary Huntsville depot. 
Between the years 1856 and 1859, a freight depot, an engine house, a machine 
shop, and two car shops were constructed on the Huntsville yard. In Decem­ 
ber, 1860, the present passenger depot was completed with ail the latest 
onveniences.

On April 11, 1862, Federal troops under General 0. M. Mitchell captured 
the city of Huntsville. The express purpose of this raid was the capture

the eastern headquarters of the M & C railroad,, thus breaking the vital 
2ast-west artery of the Confederacy. On that date, Mitchell in a wire to 
aptain J. B. Fry reported: "We have at length succeeded in cutting the 
reat artery of railway inter-communications between the Southern States." 
En addition to capturing 15 locomotives and a large number of passenger and 
Dlatform cars, they also captured about 200 Confederate soldiers who were 
returning by rail to their units. The prisoners were confined within the 
iepot until two made their escape. The remainder of the prisoners were then 
hipped to Ohio.
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Q. Significance - Memphis and Charleston Railroad Company Passenger Depot

As Mrs. William Chadwick reported in her diary, "The M & C did not cease 
to be operated, it simply changed hands. The workmen employed by the Confeder­ 
ate government either returned in the morning to work for Uncle Sam or were 
replaced by Yankee mechanics." During the war the M & C served as a base for 
gathering supplies for Union forces operating in the western theater.

After the war the line was returned to the Memphis and Charleston Co. in 
deteriorated condition. Of the 155 miles of track within the state in 1861, 
140 miles were torn up. The railroad was rebuilt by the owners but never re­ 
covered financially, and finally was sold February 26, 1898, to the Southern 
Railway System, its present owners.

In 1912 the depot was remodeled, but only the interior was changed.

In 1950* Dr. Werner Von Braun and his team of German rocket scientists 
arrived in Huntsville at this depot and went on to build the nation's space 
program.

Passenger service was discontinued in 1967 and the depot has since been 
used as a freight station. The city of Huntsville plans to buy the depot and 
restore it as a museum.


